
AGENDA 
HANOVER CITY COUNCIL 

JULY 15, 2025 
 
MAYOR 
GREG ZGUTOWICZ 
 
COUNCIL 
MIKE AMERY 
GRETCHEN BARRETT 
JOHN GANFIELD 
JIM ZAJICEK 

 
1. Call to Order Regular Work Session Meeting: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: Items on the consent agenda are generally procedural, non-controversial 

and/or have been previously discussed by the City Council.  These items do not require further 
discussion at the meeting and are passed by one motion of the Council.  Additional information is 
included for each item within the agenda packet, and Council members may move items to the 
regular agenda for further discussion as needed. 
 
a. Approve Minutes of July 1, 2025 Council Meeting (4) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (7) 

 Claims  $ 215,482.40 
 Payroll   $   18,080.00 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      6710.26 
 Other Claims  $      4,920.36 
 Total Claims     $  245,193.02  

c. Resolution 07-15-25-69 – Approving Pay Voucher 6 for CSAH 19 Project (35) 
d. Resolution 07-15-25-70 – Approving Annual Transfers (45) 

 
4. Old Business: 

a. City Hall Leak Investigation Update   
 

5. New Business: 
a. Discussion – 2026 General Fund Budget Preparation (46) 
b. Review Photo Contest Submissions  
c. Holiday Lights Update 

 
6. Reports (49) 
 
7. Adjournment 

1



To:  Mayor Zgutowicz & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Jennifer Nash, City Administrator 
 
Date:  July 10, 2025 
 
Re:  Review of July 15, 2025 City Council Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order Regular Work Session Meeting: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: Items on the consent agenda are generally procedural, non-controversial 

and/or have been previously discussed by the City Council.  These items do not require further 
discussion at the meeting and are passed by one motion of the Council.  Additional information is 
included for each item within the agenda packet, and Council members may move items to the regular 
agenda for further discussion as needed. 
 
a. Approve Minutes of July 1, 2025 Council Meeting (4) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (7) 

 Claims  $ 215,482.40 
 Payroll   $   18,080.00 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      6710.26 
 Other Claims  $      4,920.36 
 Total Claims     $  245,193.02  

c. Resolution 07-15-25-69 – Approving Pay Voucher 6 for CSAH 19 Project (35) 
d. Resolution 07-15-25-70 – Approving Annual Transfers (45) 

 
4. Old Business: 

a. City Hall Leak Investigation Update 
 

All Stacked Up Masonry removed a section of brick from the east side of Hanover City Hall on 
Wednesday, July 9th to complete investigatory work to find why water is leaking into City Hall.  They 
will be assembling their video, photos and other information for council in the coming days to discuss 
with Council at the July 15th work session.   

 
5. New Business: 

a. Discussion – 2026 General Fund Budget Preparation (46) 
The attached report describes details of the early 2026 budget preparation so far.  Staff will be 
bringing additional budget information to the meeting for Council discussion and direction.   
 
b. Review Photo Contest Submissions  
Submissions for the new Hanover Photo Contest are due this coming Friday, July 11th.  Staff will be 
compiling all submissions into a presentation for Council review at the July 15th Work Session.  
Boards will also weigh in afterwards on selection of finalists that will be voted on.   
 
 

2



c. Holiday Lights Update 
Based on feedback provided thus far, staff has requested a quote from Main Street Designs out of 
Champlin.  Hanover Athletic Association approved donation of $25,000 for purchase of holiday lights 
at their meeting on July 9th.  If a bid is received in time for the meeting and the bid is acceptable to 
Council, it is possible a request to order the lights may be made. 
 

6. Reports (49) 
 
7. Adjournment 

 

3



CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JULY 1, 2025 

Call to Order: 
Mayor Greg Zgutowicz called the Council Meeting of Tuesday, July 1, 2025, to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Present were Mayor Greg Zgutowicz, Council Members Mike Amery, Gretchen Barrett, John Ganfield, 
and Jim Zajicek. Also Present were City Administrator Jennifer Nash, City Attorney Michael Ervin, City 
Engineer Jenn Edison, Fire Chief Dave Malewicki, Fire Captain Tony Wychgram and Public Works 
Supervisor Trent Brunn. Public Attendance: Sean Sprangel, Rachel Uflers, and Michelle Ulfers. 

Approval of Agenda: 

A motion was made by Barrett and seconded by Ganfield to approve the agenda. All in favor. 
Motion carried. 

Consent Agenda: 

A motion was by Amery and seconded by Zajicek to approve the consent agenda as presented.  

a. Approve Minutes of June 17, 2025, City Council Meeting
b. Approve Claims as Presented:

 Claims $   100,214.12 
 Payroll $     16,100.23 
 P/R taxes & Exp. $       6,045.47
 Other Claims $       4,541.66 
 Total Claims $   126,901.48 

c. Resolution 07-01-25-64 – Approve Temporary Liquor License
d. Resolution 07-01-25-65 – Approving Permits and Purchase for Harvest Festival
e. Resolution 07-01-25-66 – Accepting Donation
f. Resolution 07-01-25-67 – EDA Loan/Grant - Hilltop

All in favor.  Motion carried. 

Citizen’s Forum 
Rachel Ulfers asked about solicitors in town and what their requirements are.  Nash responded with 
their registration process required, and if solicitors arrive without permit, law enforcement can be 
called. 

Michelle Ulfers noted there has been some improvements since an arrest occurred associated with 
activity at a Crow Hassan Park Road property.  She inquired about specifics of a notice received 
regarding a court date.  Nash noted the prosecutions are occurring through the Hennepin County 
Attorney’s office, so they would be able to answer questions regarding notices. 

4



New Business 
a. Resolution 07-01-25-68 – Award Park Sign Contract 

Administrator Nash reviewed the staff report noting prior RFP process for new park signs, and Park 
Board’s recommendation.  The project can be completed this year according to the proposal from Red 
Barn Creations and this would achieve an opportunity goal within Council’s strategic plan.  Zajicek 
noted the Park Board was unanimous in their recommendation. 
 
A motion was made by Ganfield and seconded by Barrett to approve Resolution 07-01-25-68 – 
Awarding Park Sign Contract.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 
 

b. Fire Department – Request for Purchase for Training Facility Improvements  
 
Fire Captain Tony Wychgram described the proposed purchase of additional welding, window and 
door work from DW Spark and Ark to continue buildout of storage containers being used as a training 
facility for firefighters.  They also plan to add two more storage containers for more training areas.  
Fire Chief Malewicki noted the buildout will be an ongoing project that will prompt additional 
purchase requests in the future as well. 
 
A motion was made by Barrett and seconded by Amery to approve the request from the Fire 
Department for purchase of services from DW Spark and Ark as described in materials 
provided.  All in favor.  Motion carried.   
 

c. City Hall Repair Item – Investigate Masonry Concerns 
Nash noted there have been attempts over some time now to repair leaks at three window at City Hall 
including roofing repairs and caulking around windows.  After this didn’t solve the issues, two 
masonry contractors were contacted to take a look at the east side of the building to see if they can 
identify the issue. 
 
Sean Sprangel of All Stacked Up Masonry provided an estimate for investigatory work to remove a 
section of the exterior bricks to be able to see where water is getting in better.  He was present at the 
meeting to describe his proposal.   
 
A motion was made by Ganfield and seconded by Zajicek to approve the proposal from All 
Stacked Up Masonry to complete investigatory work to identify water leaks on the east side of 
City Hall. Motion carried.  
 

d. Public Works – Request to Purchase De-thatcher and Bagger 
Public Works Supervisor Brunn noted the City doesn’t currently have any dethatcher or bagger 
attachments to complete necessary maintenance work in the spring and fall in the most efficient way.   
 
A motion was made by Zajicek and seconded by Amery to approve the purchase of dethatcher and 
bagger equipment from Lano as proposed.  All in favor.  Motion carried.  
 

e. Park Shelter Remodel Discussion 
Nash introduced a discussion item to update the full Council on investigation of options for remodel or 
reconstruction of the park shelter in Settlers Park.  This project was identified as a priority project in 

5



Settlers Park by Park Board and City Council members during the parks tour on May 27th.  In 
conversations with builders and the building official, it appears the building should be either stripped 
down to studs and rebuilt, or completely rebuilt due to degradation of wall construction and other 
elements. For budgetary purposes, a design firm has provided a proposal for $10,500 to draw up plans 
that could be used for bidding the project, and that firm estimates construction may cost the City 
roughly $300-400,000.  Ganfield noted he will do additional research of options to bring back to 
Council. 
 
Reports 
 

• Brunn – storm damage cleanup including trees down and stormwater-caused issues.  Culvert 
issue has shown up on Jandel.  Edison relayed that the culvert is a large 72” design, and 
Burschville Construction will be providing estimates for repairs. 

• Zajicek – relayed concerns from residents abut volume of outdoor music from Big Bore.  Nash 
will ask staff to research code regulations and options. 

• Barrett – asked about holiday lights.  Nash noted 3 examples are on street lights outside City 
Hall building, and feedback is requested by the end of the week so an estimate can be provided 
to potential funding source from Hanover Athletic Association. 

• Amery – JPWB authorized application for State grant funds for service line replacement.  
Attended LMC Annual Conference. 

• Zgutowicz – Wright County Mayors meeting 
• Administrator Nash – budget draft will be discussed on July 15th 
• Edison – Updated Council on CSAH 19 road project and traffic controls.  Answered questions 

and next steps for adjusting signage and traffic controls for this phase of construction.  Mayor 
Zgutowicz requested deputies patrol the corridor during contracted hours. 

 
Adjournment 
A motion was made by Amery and seconded by Ganfield to adjourn the meeting at 8:10 p.m. All 
in favor. Motion carried.  
 
       APPROVED BY: 

 
       __________________________________ 
       Greg Zgutowicz, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
        
___________________________________ 
Jennifer Nash, City Administrator 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



07/10/25 10:13 AM

Revenue Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER
Page 1

Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

July
2025 Amt

2025
YTD Amt

2025 YTD
Budget

2025 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

100 GENERAL FUND

TAXES R 100-31000  Property Taxes - General $74,888.23 $824,953.62 $1,514,390.00 $689,436.38 54.47%
TAXES R 100-31020  Property Taxes - Fire $0.00 $93,640.50 $187,281.00 $93,640.50 50.00%
TAXES R 100-31800  Franchise Fees $0.00 $3,585.73 $15,000.00 $11,414.27 23.90%

$74,888.23 $922,179.85 $1,716,671.00 $794,491.15 53.72%TAXES

SERVICE R 100-34000  Charges for Services $0.00 $6,600.65 $5,500.00 -$1,100.65 120.01%
SERVICE R 100-34101  City Hall Rent Revenue $850.00 $16,450.00 $20,000.00 $3,550.00 82.25%
SERVICE R 100-34107  Assessment Search Fees $0.00 $475.00 $700.00 $225.00 67.86%
SERVICE R 100-34108  Administrative Fees $50.00 $1,682.50 $5,000.00 $3,317.50 33.65%
SERVICE R 100-34109  Copies/Faxes $0.00 $6.75 $25.00 $18.25 27.00%
SERVICE R 100-34206  Other Public Safety Charges $0.00 $441.00 $0.00 -$441.00 0.00%
SERVICE R 100-34207  Fire Protection Services $0.00 $79,618.21 $159,236.00 $79,617.79 50.00%
SERVICE R 100-34403  Recycling Rev/Reimb $0.00 $4,482.11 $4,300.00 -$182.11 104.24%
SERVICE R 100-34780  Park Rental Fees $186.25 $2,273.84 $2,500.00 $226.16 90.95%
SERVICE R 100-34940  Cemetery Revenues $900.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 -$1,000.00 0.00%

$1,986.25 $113,030.06 $197,261.00 $84,230.94 57.30%SERVICE

MISC R 100-36100  Special Assessments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-36200  Miscellaneous Revenues $7.50 $47,534.53 $100.00 -$47,434.53 47534.53%
MISC R 100-36210  Interest Earnings $0.00 $20,049.30 $0.00 -$20,049.30 0.00%
MISC R 100-36215  Investment Income/Loss $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-36230  Contributions and Donation $0.00 $9,566.04 $0.00 -$9,566.04 0.00%
MISC R 100-36235  Insurance Dividends $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-36250  Damage Deposits $1,150.00 $17,050.00 $15,000.00 -$2,050.00 113.67%
MISC R 100-36260  Refunds or Reimbursement $0.00 $3,065.83 $0.00 -$3,065.83 0.00%
MISC R 100-36290  Sale of Vehicles/Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-39101  Sales of General Fixed Asse $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-39203  Transfer from Other Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$1,157.50 $97,265.70 $15,100.00 -$82,165.70 644.14%MISC

LIC PERM R 100-32110  Alchoholic Beverages $0.00 $10,185.00 $6,870.00 -$3,315.00 148.25%
LIC PERM R 100-32180  Other Bus. Licenses/Permits $2.00 $1,108.00 $1,000.00 -$108.00 110.80%
LIC PERM R 100-32210  Building Permits $7,800.81 $234,899.78 $200,000.00 -$34,899.78 117.45%
LIC PERM R 100-32240  Animal Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
LIC PERM R 100-32260  Solid Waste Hauler Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 0.00%
LIC PERM R 100-32270  Rental Dwelling Licenses $0.00 $630.00 $0.00 -$630.00 0.00%
LIC PERM R 100-32280  Other Non-Business Lic/Per $0.00 $1.00 $50.00 $49.00 2.00%

$7,802.81 $246,823.78 $209,170.00 -$37,653.78 118.00%LIC PERM

INTGOVT R 100-33400  State Grants and Aids $0.00 $4,955.50 $117,000.00 $112,044.50 4.24%
INTGOVT R 100-33401  Local Government Aid $0.00 $11,948.06 $127,390.00 $115,441.94 9.38%
INTGOVT R 100-33410  MV Credit $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33420  PERA Aid $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33422  State Fire Aid $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33426  State Police Aid $0.00 $0.00 $7,100.00 $7,100.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33610  County Grants/Aid for Road $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $16,903.56 $302,490.00 $285,586.44 5.59%INTGOVT

FINES R 100-35000  Fines and Forfeits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
FINES R 100-35100  Court Fines $0.00 $1,977.79 $3,300.00 $1,322.21 59.93%

$0.00 $1,977.79 $3,300.00 $1,322.21 59.93%FINES

$85,834.79 $1,398,180.74 $2,443,992.00 $1,045,811.26 57.21%100 GENERAL FUND

28



07/10/25 10:14 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER
Page 1

Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2025
Amt

2025
YTD Amt

2025 YTD
Budget

2025 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

100 GENERAL FUND

41110 Council
COUNCIL E 100-41110-111  Committee Wages/Me $0.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 0.00%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-122  FICA $0.00 $0.00 $806.00 $806.00 0.00%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-123  Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $189.00 $189.00 0.00%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-208  Training and Instructio $0.00 $670.00 $2,000.00 $1,330.00 33.50%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-306  Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $5,483.00 $7,500.00 $2,017.00 73.11%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-331  Travel Expenses $879.48 $879.48 $2,000.00 $1,120.52 43.97%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-437  Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $3,722.24 $60,000.00 $56,277.76 6.20%

$879.48 $10,754.72 $85,495.00 $74,740.28 12.58%41110 Council

41330 Boards and Commissions
BRDCOMM E 100-41330-111  Committee Wages/Me $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%
BRDCOMM E 100-41330-208  Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%
BRDCOMM E 100-41330-331  Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $5,700.00 $5,700.00 0.00%41330 Boards and Commissions

41400 City Administrator
CITYADM E 100-41400-101  Full-Time Employees R $4,453.84 $57,815.11 $116,447.00 $58,631.89 49.65%
CITYADM E 100-41400-121  PERA $334.04 $4,640.26 $8,734.00 $4,093.74 53.13%
CITYADM E 100-41400-122  FICA $242.00 $3,233.74 $7,220.00 $3,986.26 44.79%
CITYADM E 100-41400-123  Medicare $56.60 $809.09 $1,688.00 $878.91 47.93%
CITYADM E 100-41400-134  Employer Paid Life $36.36 $525.70 $984.00 $458.30 53.42%
CITYADM E 100-41400-151  Med/Dental Insurance $355.38 $4,975.28 $9,240.00 $4,264.72 53.85%
CITYADM E 100-41400-208  Training and Instructio $0.00 $2,395.00 $3,500.00 $1,105.00 68.43%
CITYADM E 100-41400-306  Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $142.67 $500.00 $357.33 28.53%

$5,478.22 $74,536.85 $148,313.00 $73,776.15 50.26%41400 City Administrator

41410 Elections
ELECTION E 100-41410-101  Full-Time Employees R $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-122  FICA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-123  Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-142  Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-200  Office Supplies (GENE $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-310  Other Professional Ser $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-351  Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-400  Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-437  Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 0.00%41410 Elections

41420 Recording and Reporting
RECRPT E 100-41420-354  Recording Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%41420 Recording and Reporting

41430 Clerical Staff
CLERICAL E 100-41430-101  Full-Time Employees R $2,683.73 $29,850.62 $70,718.00 $40,867.38 42.21%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-103  Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-121  PERA $201.27 $2,350.30 $5,304.00 $2,953.70 44.31%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-122  FICA $152.29 $1,674.95 $4,385.00 $2,710.05 38.20%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-123  Medicare $35.62 $414.55 $1,025.00 $610.45 40.44%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-134  Employer Paid Life $22.10 $294.90 $582.00 $287.10 50.67%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-142  Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-151  Med/Dental Insurance $365.27 $4,553.70 $8,940.00 $4,386.30 50.94%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-208  Training and Instructio $0.00 $890.00 $3,500.00 $2,610.00 25.43%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-306  Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 $0.00 100.00%29



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2025
Amt

2025
YTD Amt

2025 YTD
Budget

2025 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2

07/10/25 10:14 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

CLERICAL E 100-41430-310  Other Professional Ser $2,424.24 $7,175.93 $10,000.00 $2,824.07 71.76%
$5,884.52 $47,304.95 $104,554.00 $57,249.05 45.24%41430 Clerical Staff

41435 Staff Expenses
STAFFEXP E 100-41435-260  Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%
STAFFEXP E 100-41435-310  Other Professional Ser $113.90 $220.57 $500.00 $279.43 44.11%
STAFFEXP E 100-41435-331  Travel Expenses $253.82 $1,671.14 $4,000.00 $2,328.86 41.78%

$367.72 $1,891.71 $5,000.00 $3,108.29 37.83%41435 Staff Expenses

41530 Accounting
ACCTING E 100-41530-101  Full-Time Employees R $2,356.20 $21,433.25 $61,721.00 $40,287.75 34.73%
ACCTING E 100-41530-121  PERA $176.72 $1,647.19 $4,629.00 $2,981.81 35.58%
ACCTING E 100-41530-122  FICA $134.96 $1,184.27 $3,827.00 $2,642.73 30.95%
ACCTING E 100-41530-123  Medicare $31.56 $305.29 $895.00 $589.71 34.11%
ACCTING E 100-41530-134  Employer Paid Life $19.74 $296.30 $506.00 $209.70 58.56%
ACCTING E 100-41530-151  Med/Dental Insurance $493.28 $7,038.14 $10,200.00 $3,161.86 69.00%
ACCTING E 100-41530-208  Training and Instructio $0.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 25.00%
ACCTING E 100-41530-306  Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%
ACCTING E 100-41530-310  Other Professional Ser $0.00 $12,676.25 $15,000.00 $2,323.75 84.51%

$3,212.46 $44,830.69 $97,978.00 $53,147.31 45.76%41530 Accounting

41540 Auditing
AUDITING E 100-41540-301  Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $20,150.00 $24,000.00 $3,850.00 83.96%

$0.00 $20,150.00 $24,000.00 $3,850.00 83.96%41540 Auditing

41550 Assessing
ASSESS G E 100-41550-310  Other Professional Ser $26,605.00 $26,734.62 $38,000.00 $11,265.38 70.35%

$26,605.00 $26,734.62 $38,000.00 $11,265.38 70.35%41550 Assessing

41570 Purchasing
PURCHASE E 100-41570-200  Office Supplies (GENE $172.72 $1,519.15 $4,500.00 $2,980.85 33.76%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-205  Bank Fees $1.05 $228.07 $400.00 $171.93 57.02%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-207  Computer Supplies $0.00 $4,085.28 $8,000.00 $3,914.72 51.07%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-220  Repair/Maint Supply ( $287.55 $1,902.23 $4,000.00 $2,097.77 47.56%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-322  Postage $365.00 $740.85 $3,500.00 $2,759.15 21.17%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-570  Office Equip and Furni $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$826.32 $8,475.58 $20,400.00 $11,924.42 41.55%41570 Purchasing

41600 Computer
COMPUTER E 100-41600-310  Other Professional Ser $0.00 $10,446.42 $10,000.00 -$446.42 104.46%

$0.00 $10,446.42 $10,000.00 -$446.42 104.46%41600 Computer

41610 City Attorney
CITYATNY E 100-41610-304  Legal Fees $1,459.02 $6,293.92 $20,000.00 $13,706.08 31.47%

$1,459.02 $6,293.92 $20,000.00 $13,706.08 31.47%41610 City Attorney

41910 Planning and Zoning
PLANZONG E 100-41910-101  Full-Time Employees R $1,861.49 $4,004.21 $45,577.00 $41,572.79 8.79%
PLANZONG E 100-41910-103  Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
PLANZONG E 100-41910-121  PERA $139.61 $300.31 $3,418.00 $3,117.69 8.79%
PLANZONG E 100-41910-122  FICA $115.41 $248.26 $2,826.00 $2,577.74 8.78%
PLANZONG E 100-41910-123  Medicare $26.99 $58.06 $661.00 $602.94 8.78%
PLANZONG E 100-41910-134  Employer Paid Life $14.04 $29.79 $385.07 $355.28 7.74%
PLANZONG E 100-41910-151  Med/Dental Insurance $249.50 $529.51 $6,720.00 $6,190.49 7.88%
PLANZONG E 100-41910-208  Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%
PLANZONG E 100-41910-306  Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%
PLANZONG E 100-41910-310  Other Professional Ser $1,292.45 $8,407.95 $60,000.00 $51,592.05 14.01%

30



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2025
Amt

2025
YTD Amt

2025 YTD
Budget

2025 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 3

07/10/25 10:14 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

$3,699.49 $13,578.09 $121,087.07 $107,508.98 11.21%41910 Planning and Zoning

41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-210  Operating Supplies (G $0.00 $486.79 $6,000.00 $5,513.21 8.11%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-220  Repair/Maint Supply ( $645.80 $4,598.37 $8,000.00 $3,401.63 57.48%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-306  Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $750.00 $800.00 $50.00 93.75%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-310  Other Professional Ser $2,128.38 $5,342.52 $15,000.00 $9,657.48 35.62%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-321  Telephone $768.47 $3,765.62 $6,900.00 $3,134.38 54.57%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-325  Taxes $0.00 $801.27 $1,000.00 $198.73 80.13%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-381  Electric Utilities $1,759.93 $4,929.21 $15,000.00 $10,070.79 32.86%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-383  Gas Utilities $61.67 $4,720.92 $7,000.00 $2,279.08 67.44%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-384  Refuse/Garbage Dispo $766.51 $5,032.28 $7,800.00 $2,767.72 64.52%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-415  Other Equipment Rent $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-520  Buildings and Structur $0.00 $4,240.00 $50,000.00 $45,760.00 8.48%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-560  Furniture and Fixtures $0.00 $504.81 $3,000.00 $2,495.19 16.83%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-580  Other Equipment $0.00 $1,907.82 $0.00 -$1,907.82 0.00%

$6,130.76 $37,079.61 $120,500.00 $83,420.39 30.77%41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

41950 Engineer
ENGINEER E 100-41950-101  Full-Time Employees R $232.69 $500.53 $5,697.00 $5,196.47 8.79%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-103  Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-121  PERA $17.45 $37.54 $83.00 $45.46 45.23%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-122  FICA $14.43 $31.03 $353.00 $321.97 8.79%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-123  Medicare $3.37 $7.26 $83.00 $75.74 8.75%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-134  Employer Paid Life $1.75 $3.72 $101.00 $97.28 3.68%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-151  Med/Dental Insurance $31.19 $66.18 $840.00 $773.82 7.88%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-208  Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-303  Engineering Fees $0.00 $5,096.50 $0.00 -$5,096.50 0.00%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-306  Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%
ENGINEER E 100-41950-310  Other Professional Ser $0.00 $3,004.00 $21,343.00 $18,339.00 14.07%

$300.88 $8,746.76 $30,000.00 $21,253.24 29.16%41950 Engineer

41960 Insurance
INSURANCE E 100-41960-150  Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $21,738.62 $20,000.00 -$1,738.62 108.69%
INSURANCE E 100-41960-152  Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
INSURANCE E 100-41960-361  General Liability Ins $0.00 $28,032.94 $31,000.00 $2,967.06 90.43%

$0.00 $49,771.56 $51,000.00 $1,228.44 97.59%41960 Insurance

41970 Legal Publications
LEGALPUB E 100-41970-341  Employment $0.00 $383.93 $1,000.00 $616.07 38.39%
LEGALPUB E 100-41970-343  Other Advertising $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%
LEGALPUB E 100-41970-351  Legal Notices Publishin $29.06 $29.06 $600.00 $570.94 4.84%
LEGALPUB E 100-41970-354  Recording Fees $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

$29.06 $412.99 $2,100.00 $1,687.01 19.67%41970 Legal Publications

42000 Public Safety (GENERAL)
PUBSAFTY E 100-42000-437  Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $14.83 $200.00 $185.17 7.42%

$0.00 $14.83 $200.00 $185.17 7.42%42000 Public Safety (GENERAL)

42101 Hennepin County Sheriff
HCSHERIFF E 100-42101-310  Other Professional Ser $27,053.07 $53,808.86 $108,510.00 $54,701.14 49.59%

$27,053.07 $53,808.86 $108,510.00 $54,701.14 49.59%42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

42102 Wright County Sheriff
WCSHERIFF E 100-42102-310  Other Professional Ser $0.00 $82,632.77 $168,360.00 $85,727.23 49.08%

$0.00 $82,632.77 $168,360.00 $85,727.23 49.08%42102 Wright County Sheriff

42210 Fire Dept Administration
31



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2025
Amt

2025
YTD Amt

2025 YTD
Budget

2025 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 4

07/10/25 10:14 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-101  Full-Time Employees R $774.32 $10,057.92 $20,218.00 $10,160.08 49.75%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-103  Part-Time Employees $0.00 $20,034.25 $114,000.00 $93,965.75 17.57%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-121  PERA $58.07 $809.60 $1,516.00 $706.40 53.40%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-122  FICA $43.47 $1,806.73 $8,322.00 $6,515.27 21.71%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-123  Medicare $10.16 $802.58 $1,946.00 $1,143.42 41.24%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-134  Employer Paid Life $6.63 $97.83 $147.00 $49.17 66.55%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-142  Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $517.57 $0.00 -$517.57 0.00%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-150  Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $21,804.18 $28,000.00 $6,195.82 77.87%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-151  Med/Dental Insurance $106.50 $1,497.79 $2,460.00 $962.21 60.89%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-200  Office Supplies (GENE $6.35 $6.35 $400.00 $393.65 1.59%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-305  Medical and Dental Fe $759.00 $759.00 $12,000.00 $11,241.00 6.33%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-306  Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $1,337.71 $1,200.00 -$137.71 111.48%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-361  General Liability Ins $0.00 $5,628.33 $6,500.00 $871.67 86.59%

$1,764.50 $65,159.84 $196,709.00 $131,549.16 33.13%42210 Fire Dept Administration

42220 Fire Dept Equipment
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-221  Equipment Parts $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-228  Medical Supplies $0.00 $544.40 $1,500.00 $955.60 36.29%
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-240  Small Tools and Minor $20.00 $20.00 $1,000.00 $980.00 2.00%
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-260  Uniforms $0.00 $714.35 $18,000.00 $17,285.65 3.97%
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-580  Other Equipment $0.00 $3,018.66 $5,000.00 $1,981.34 60.37%

$20.00 $4,297.41 $31,500.00 $27,202.59 13.64%42220 Fire Dept Equipment

42240 Fire Dept Training
FIRETRNG E 100-42240-208  Training and Instructio $4,978.75 $12,274.89 $12,000.00 -$274.89 102.29%
FIRETRNG E 100-42240-310  Other Professional Ser $1,191.50 $2,383.00 $4,000.00 $1,617.00 59.58%
FIRETRNG E 100-42240-331  Travel Expenses $0.00 $3,147.50 $3,500.00 $352.50 89.93%

$6,170.25 $17,805.39 $19,500.00 $1,694.61 91.31%42240 Fire Dept Training

42260 Fire Vehicles
FIREVEH E 100-42260-212  Motor Fuels $0.00 $2,006.50 $5,000.00 $2,993.50 40.13%
FIREVEH E 100-42260-220  Repair/Maint Supply ( $692.45 $3,810.01 $15,000.00 $11,189.99 25.40%
FIREVEH E 100-42260-240  Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $76.08 $1,000.00 $923.92 7.61%
FIREVEH E 100-42260-323  Radio Units $0.00 $4,725.00 $6,000.00 $1,275.00 78.75%
FIREVEH E 100-42260-700  Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $30,158.00 $30,158.00 0.00%

$692.45 $10,617.59 $57,158.00 $46,540.41 18.58%42260 Fire Vehicles

42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-215  Shop Supplies $0.00 $234.58 $650.00 $415.42 36.09%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-220  Repair/Maint Supply ( $336.05 $1,609.93 $5,000.00 $3,390.07 32.20%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-321  Telephone $0.00 $2,828.83 $1,500.00 -$1,328.83 188.59%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-325  Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-381  Electric Utilities $292.73 $2,165.56 $5,500.00 $3,334.44 39.37%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-383  Gas Utilities $28.00 $3,505.99 $4,500.00 $994.01 77.91%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-520  Buildings and Structur $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

$656.78 $10,344.89 $18,150.00 $7,805.11 57.00%42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

42290 Fire Relief Association
FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-124  Fire Pension Contributi $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 0.00%
FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-125  Other Retirement Cont $8,250.00 $8,250.00 $16,500.00 $8,250.00 50.00%
FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-301  Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 0.00%

$8,250.00 $8,250.00 $73,500.00 $65,250.00 11.22%42290 Fire Relief Association

42401 Building Inspection Admin
INSPADMN E 100-42401-101  Full-Time Employees R $1,494.48 $13,114.07 $39,922.00 $26,807.93 32.85%
INSPADMN E 100-42401-121  PERA $112.09 $983.58 $2,994.00 $2,010.42 32.85%
INSPADMN E 100-42401-122  FICA $89.09 $781.02 $2,475.00 $1,693.98 31.56%

32



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2025
Amt

2025
YTD Amt

2025 YTD
Budget

2025 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 5

07/10/25 10:14 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

INSPADMN E 100-42401-123  Medicare $20.84 $182.67 $579.00 $396.33 31.55%
INSPADMN E 100-42401-134  Employer Paid Life $10.86 $97.74 $377.00 $279.26 25.93%
INSPADMN E 100-42401-151  Med/Dental Insurance $216.66 $1,949.94 $5,460.00 $3,510.06 35.71%
INSPADMN E 100-42401-310  Other Professional Ser $23,453.82 $96,516.48 $99,000.00 $2,483.52 97.49%

$25,397.84 $113,625.50 $150,807.00 $37,181.50 75.34%42401 Building Inspection Admin

42700 Animal Control
ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-310  Other Professional Ser $0.00 $250.00 $500.00 $250.00 50.00%

$0.00 $250.00 $500.00 $250.00 50.00%42700 Animal Control

42800 Cemetery
CEMETERY E 100-42800-310  Other Professional Ser $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%42800 Cemetery

43000 Public Works (GENERAL)
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-101  Full-Time Employees R $7,858.88 $102,810.90 $182,242.00 $79,431.10 56.41%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-102  Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-103  Part-Time Employees $2,275.00 $6,612.75 $20,640.00 $14,027.25 32.04%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-121  PERA $589.42 $8,271.39 $15,168.00 $6,896.61 54.53%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-122  FICA $611.62 $6,567.38 $12,539.00 $5,971.62 52.38%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-123  Medicare $143.04 $1,645.68 $2,933.00 $1,287.32 56.11%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-134  Employer Paid Life $66.28 $985.34 $1,750.00 $764.66 56.31%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-142  Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $52.98 $0.00 -$52.98 0.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-151  Med/Dental Insurance $1,110.42 $15,636.47 $26,400.00 $10,763.53 59.23%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-208  Training and Instructio $0.00 $755.00 $4,500.00 $3,745.00 16.78%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-212  Motor Fuels $1,427.52 $8,574.46 $18,000.00 $9,425.54 47.64%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-215  Shop Supplies $1,446.98 $6,087.00 $10,000.00 $3,913.00 60.87%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-220  Repair/Maint Supply ( $869.34 $12,198.55 $15,000.00 $2,801.45 81.32%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-226  Sign Repair Materials $767.58 $4,667.45 $5,000.00 $332.55 93.35%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-240  Small Tools and Minor $169.99 $10,351.25 $16,500.00 $6,148.75 62.73%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-260  Uniforms $690.07 $1,872.17 $3,000.00 $1,127.83 62.41%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-310  Other Professional Ser $52.90 $9,552.48 $35,000.00 $25,447.52 27.29%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-321  Telephone $488.65 $2,677.06 $6,500.00 $3,822.94 41.19%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-325  Taxes $0.00 $903.73 $200.00 -$703.73 451.87%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-381  Electric Utilities $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 0.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-383  Gas Utilities $104.17 $7,295.31 $9,000.00 $1,704.69 81.06%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-384  Refuse/Garbage Dispo $160.21 $1,109.47 $5,000.00 $3,890.53 22.19%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-520  Buildings and Structur $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 0.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-580  Other Equipment $0.00 $252.89 $0.00 -$252.89 0.00%

$18,832.07 $208,879.71 $414,372.00 $205,492.29 50.41%43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

43121 Paved Streets
PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-224  Street Maint Materials $0.00 $10,073.75 $50,000.00 $39,926.25 20.15%

$0.00 $10,073.75 $50,000.00 $39,926.25 20.15%43121 Paved Streets

43122 Unpaved Streets
UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-224  Street Maint Materials $2,122.54 $3,628.46 $23,000.00 $19,371.54 15.78%

$2,122.54 $3,628.46 $23,000.00 $19,371.54 15.78%43122 Unpaved Streets

43125 Ice & Snow Removal
SNOWREMO E 100-43125-224  Street Maint Materials $0.00 $15,875.28 $24,000.00 $8,124.72 66.15%

$0.00 $15,875.28 $24,000.00 $8,124.72 66.15%43125 Ice & Snow Removal

43160 Street Lighting
STLGHTG E 100-43160-381  Electric Utilities $2,987.99 $19,453.74 $40,000.00 $20,546.26 48.63%

$2,987.99 $19,453.74 $40,000.00 $20,546.26 48.63%43160 Street Lighting

43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal
33



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

July
2025
Amt

2025
YTD Amt

2025 YTD
Budget

2025 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 6

07/10/25 10:14 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

REFDISPO E 100-43240-384  Refuse/Garbage Dispo $0.00 $2,662.39 $5,000.00 $2,337.61 53.25%
$0.00 $2,662.39 $5,000.00 $2,337.61 53.25%43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

43245 Recycling: Refuse
RECYCLING E 100-43245-384  Refuse/Garbage Dispo $0.00 $33,597.20 $90,000.00 $56,402.80 37.33%

$0.00 $33,597.20 $90,000.00 $56,402.80 37.33%43245 Recycling: Refuse

45186 Senior Center
SRCENTER E 100-45186-437  Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $5,990.50 $12,000.00 $6,009.50 49.92%

$0.00 $5,990.50 $12,000.00 $6,009.50 49.92%45186 Senior Center

45200 Parks (GENERAL)
PARKS E 100-45200-212  Motor Fuels $0.00 $961.29 $7,000.00 $6,038.71 13.73%
PARKS E 100-45200-220  Repair/Maint Supply ( $190.88 $9,086.36 $12,000.00 $2,913.64 75.72%
PARKS E 100-45200-225  Landscaping Materials $1,152.87 $6,920.83 $15,000.00 $8,079.17 46.14%
PARKS E 100-45200-310  Other Professional Ser $195.96 $195.96 $0.00 -$195.96 0.00%
PARKS E 100-45200-381  Electric Utilities $85.21 $810.22 $3,000.00 $2,189.78 27.01%
PARKS E 100-45200-400  Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
PARKS E 100-45200-440  Programs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
PARKS E 100-45200-580  Other Equipment $0.00 $2,099.46 $3,000.00 $900.54 69.98%

$1,624.92 $20,074.12 $40,000.00 $19,925.88 50.19%45200 Parks (GENERAL)

45500 Libraries (GENERAL)
LIBRARY E 100-45500-437  Other Miscellaneous $5,500.00 $14,402.84 $17,100.00 $2,697.16 84.23%

$5,500.00 $14,402.84 $17,100.00 $2,697.16 84.23%45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

48205 Damage Deposit Refunds
DMGDEPRF E 100-48205-810  Refunds & Reimburse $4,350.00 $17,485.00 $15,000.00 -$2,485.00 116.57%

$4,350.00 $17,485.00 $15,000.00 -$2,485.00 116.57%48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

49360 Transfers Out
TRNSFERS E 100-49360-700  Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%49360 Transfers Out

49800 Transit (GENERAL)
TRANSIT E 100-49800-310  Other Professional Ser $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%49800 Transit (GENERAL)

$160,295.34 $1,079,938.54 $2,443,993.07 $1,364,054.53 44.19%100 GENERAL FUND

34



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO 07-15-25-69 
 

APPROVING PAY VOUCHER #6 FOR THE  
CSAH 19 IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Hanover is the lead agency on the CSAH 19 improvement project occurring in 
2024 and 2025 with Wright County as managed by WSB Engineering; and 

WHEREAS, Wright County has agreed to pay 95% of their total project costs which has been received 
at City of Hanover for payment of bills from the contractor; and  

WHEREAS, the City Engineer of the City of Hanover has reviewed quantities of materials submitted for 
payment of work completed by contractor Veit & Company, Inc. for work completed on the CSAH 19 
Improvement Project previously authorized by Council; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends payment as per attached Pay Voucher #6, in the amount of $596,948.92. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota 
hereby approves pay voucher #6 as attached. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 15th day of July, 2025. 

APPROVED BY: 
 
       ___________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Greg Zgutowicz, Mayor 
 
____________________________________ 
Jennifer Nash, City Administrator 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO 07-15-25-70 
 

APPROVING YEAR-END TRANSFERS 
 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed final 2024 revenue and expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends transferring $24,211 of unused Fire Services Contract Revenue to Fire 
Department Capital to offset future Fire Department Capital Expenses; and 

WHEREAS, staff also recommends transferring $70,000 of excess general operating fund balance to the 
street capital fund, $250,000 to the facilities capital fund and $100,000 to the park capital fund to offset 
future capital expenses; and  

WHEREAS, EDA budget for annual transfers from their Special Revenue Fund which it utilizes for 
annual operating expenses and their Business Incentive Fund used for their revolving loan fund and other 
programs; and 

WHEREAS, staff is recommending catching up on already authorized annual transfers between these 
EDA funds as previously directed in the amounts of $35,000 for 2021, $35,000 for 2022 and $35,000 for 
2023. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, 
hereby approves the following transfers: 

• $24,211 from General Operating to Fire Department Capital 
• $70,000 from General Operating to Street Capital 
• $250,000 from General Operating to Facilities Capital 
• $100,000 from General Operating to Park Capital 
• $105,000 from EDA Special Revenue to EDA Business Incentive 

 
 
 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 15th day of July, 2025. 

APPROVED BY: 
 
       ______________________________ 
ATTEST:      Greg Zgutowicz, Mayor 
 
______________________________ 
Jennifer Nash, City Administrator 

45



  

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor Greg Zgutowicz and Council Members 
From: Jennifer Nash, City Administrator 
Date:  July 10, 2025 
RE:  2026 Preliminary Budget Preparation 
 
 

Staff will be putting some finishing touches on a first draft general fund budget to be 
discussed at your meeting on Tuesday for additional direction from Council.  This memo 
highlights some assumptions used in preparation as well as some remaining questions and 
discussion points.  Below are some notes on revenue and expenditure items: 
 
Revenues 

• Building permit and other revenues are shown with conservative estimates 
• No major fee adjustments proposed at this time for general fund services  
• LGA amounts are estimated based on legislative discussions - actuals available July 

31st 
• Utilizing the second $50k of the one-time public safety aid provided by the State and 

planned for multi-year offset of some of the increased law enforcement and fire 
services costs over time 

• Capital planning goals have been supplemented in recent years by savings in annual 
operating budgets due to staff vacancies, interest earnings and other savings.  Annual 
budgeted capital transfer reduced slightly for 2026 draft.   

 
Expenditures 
Staffing Assumptions in Draft 

• In keeping with recent practice, 5% increase shown for the wage scale for all positions 
– to be reviewed for ongoing market appropriateness 

• Employee insurance coverages are estimates – actuals to be updated 
• No new full-time staff positions shown 
• Seasonal and temporary positions - first draft budget shows temporary intern for 2026 

(up to 6 months), and a proposal from public works to eliminate the winter seasonal 
positions and instead add 2 more summer seasonals.  Parks budget includes both the 
shift from 2 to 4 summer seasonals as well as a proposed contracted mulch 
replacement project for one park. 

• 2026 is an election year.  Elections will require increased hours for election judges and 
draft budget proposes increasing hourly rate to $13/hr for regular judge and $15/hr for 
head judges.  No temporary staff position would be required for elections in 2026 as 
absentee voting is being administered by both counties. 

• Increase in fire department wages due to increased call volume, proposed hourly wage 
increase and increase in officer pay - $1.50/hr proposed increase for hourly 
probationary and regular firefighters; $500 each pay increase proposed for the 8 fire 
officer positions. 

• Move 10% staff time for planning coordinator from engineering to building 
inspections – administrator to instead continue providing some of this initial response 
support as appropriate.  This shift better matches actual practice 

 
46



Other Assumptions in Draft 
• Council Opportunity Goal Item - Electronic data management systems project - 

$10,000 anticipated - $3,000 for additional Laserfiche licenses and $7,000 for specific 
projects as managed by City Clerk and supported by Admin. Specialist, Deputy Clerk 
and Planning Coordinator 

• Council Priority Goal Items – Capital Improvement Plan update project included for 
2026 through budgeted support costs from Ehlers and staffing by City Administrator 
with additional support from Accounting Specialist and department heads.  This work 
will also influence other priority and opportunity items regarding planning for city 
hall/Settlers Park project, Historic Bridge work and Hennepin County intersections 
work. 

• Council Priority Goal Item – Utility rate analysis preparations have started utilizing 
the administrator’s budgeted 5% time for water and sewer fund needs.  Administrator 
and engineer have begun conversations about infrastructure planning that will be 
needed as source data for the upcoming analysis of utility system operational and 
capital planning needs. 

• Council Priority Goal Item - Increased training investments for all positions in fire 
department, public works and city hall – professional development of new staff 
continues 

• Council Priority Goal Item – Code enforcement being handled principally by planning 
coordinator position with budget now capturing the full calendar year for the position 
first employed for partial year in 2025 

• Fire department budget includes participation with other area communities for study of 
possible additional partnership opportunities 

• Cost increases for the City’s utility bills, supplies and other items are estimated and 
incorporated in into the draft budget – these may be refined further as more 
information is available 

• Repair items at City Hall are budgeted for another $50,000 in 2026 with opportunity to 
look at utilization of capital funds should a larger project be required.  $10,000 also 
budgeted in 2026 for replacement of aging hall rental tables, chairs and/or other items 

 
 
Possible Discussion Points 
• Contract with Wright County Sheriff’s Office expires at the end of 2025 – new fees for 

services not known yet.  Hennepin’s contract is in place through 2026 and included. 
• Are there other service level maintenance/improvements Council would like to implement 

that should be included in this budget?  
• Are there specific projects from the operating budget that Council would like to make sure 

are completed in 2026 that need to be added? 
• Some Items to Effect Future Drafts:  

o LGA numbers coming July 31 
o Tax capacity updated estimates coming in the fall.  Draft estimates 7% overall tax 

capacity increase which may be a little low. 
o Fire service district market valuations being provided from the County in July. 

This impacts the City of Hanover’s proportional share of fire service costs as well 
as the costs paid by municipalities contracting with the City’s department for 
providing these services 

o Additional review of market conditions for wage strategy impacts 
 

47



 
 
Recommendation: 
We are still early in the budget preparation process for the 2026 general fund budget.  Staff is 
interested in hearing what other information we can bring back for upcoming budget 
discussions.  What do you have questions on?  What analysis can we bring back for your next 
discussion?  In addition to Council’s Strategic Plan priority and opportunity goals used to 
create this initial draft budget, are there other goals Council members have you would like to 
discuss for inclusion in next year’s budget (service levels, budget priorities, etc)? 

48



Excellent
Place to Live

Safe and Active Community
High-Quality, Responsive
City Services
Well-Planned Development
that Meets the Community’s
Needs
Thoughtful and Intentional
Comprehensive Planning
and Zoning Standards to
Guide Development

City of Hanover
Strategic Plan

Mission Statement

Hanover is a desirable small-town
community with quality amenities and

services provided in a fiscally responsible
manner.

Small-Town
Atmosphere

Parks and
Amenities to Meet
Community Needs

Community
Engagement

Thriving
Downtown

Fiscally
Responsible

Locally-Owned Businesses
that are a Destination for
Residents and Businesses
Proactively Seek Expanded
Retail and Commerical
Opportunities
Aesthetically-Pleasing
Business District
Redevelop Blighted
Properties

Desirable Place to Call Home
Engage Citizens that
Volunteer Creating Strong
Community Groups,
Organizations, and Events
Maintain and Support
Historic Aspects

Quality, Well-Maintained
Amenities
Abundant Open and Natural
Spaces
Interconnected Trail System
and Access to High Quality
Regional Parks
Establish Consistent Identity
Across Facilities and
Amenities

Accurate, Timely and
Transparent Information
Processes that Involve and
Engage Stakeholders
Communication Tools that
Evolve With Time
Leading With Long-Term
Vision and Direction
Citizen and Resident-
Oriented Organization

Maximize Infrastructure
Return on Investment
Through Planning that
Includes Maintenance and
Replacement
Pragmatic and Cost-
Effective Services
Scalable Organization -
Structure to Grow Effectively
Systems, Structures and
Processes that are Resilient

Hanover Core Strategies

20220252025-2026 49



Develop and improve the City’s code
enforcement process

       *Identify resource needs,   
         update process, and  
         implement action

Conduct a Utility Fee and Rate Analysis
Develop a plan for improvements at
City Hall and Settlers Park
Update website as an online resource
and information source
Update Capital Improvement Plan
Foster professional development
opportunities for staff
Pursue redevelopment opportunities
on block near River Inn 

Consider law enforcement service options
Identify and improve processes and
systems to create additional efficiency
(target 2-3 processes)
Conduct review of facility use and storage;
identify policy changes as needed
Develop and install new park/facility
signage with consistent identity
Develop a plan for Historic Bridge
Conduct review of Comprehensive Plan
Pursue funding for Hennepin County
intersections

High Priority
Goals

Opportunity
Goals

City of Hanover Strategic Plan
2025-2026

50


	ADP9283.tmp
	To:  Mayor Zgutowicz & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Jennifer Nash, City Administrator
	Date:  July 10, 2025
	Re:  Review of July 15, 2025 City Council Agenda

	Claims packet.pdf
	Payments
	Metro West
	Collaborative
	Cash Balance
	Revenue
	Expenditures

	ADP5D83.tmp
	To:  Mayor Zgutowicz & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Jennifer Nash, City Administrator
	Date:  July 10, 2025
	Re:  Review of July 15, 2025 City Council Agenda




